



**DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL**

**DOCUMENTS / MATERIALS**

**GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL**

**3 JULY 2021**

**3:00 - 5:30 PM CEST**

-

**UNTERLAGEN / MATERIALIEN**

**MITGLIEDERVERSAMMLUNG VON DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL E.V.**

**3. JULI 2021**

**15:00 – 17:30 UHR MESZ**

# TABLE OF CONTENTS / INHALTSVERZEICHNIS

- 1. Formal invitation General Assembly - English version ..... 1
- 2. Formelle Einladung zur Mitgliederversammlung - Deutsche Version ..... 4
- 3. Annex / Anhang ..... 7
  - 3.1 Annex 1 / Anhang 1: Report on the Audit / Bericht Rechnungsprüfung 2019 ..... 7*
  - 3.2 Annex 2 / Anhang 2: Report Budget 2020 & Budget Plan 2021 / Finanzbericht 2020 & Finanzplan 2021 ..... 13*
  - 3.3 Annex 3 / Anhang 3: Motions General Assembly Democracy International / Anträge Mitgliederversammlung Democracy International ..... 17*



# DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL

## 1. FORMAL INVITATION GENERAL ASSEMBLY - ENGLISH VERSION

Dear Members of Democracy International,

We hereby invite you to Democracy International's next General Assembly to take place in an online conference via zoom on Saturday July 3, 3:00 - 5:30 pm CEST.

The General Assembly takes place on the occasion of the 10th anniversary of Democracy International.

According to the Democracy International statutes, the General Assembly must be held at least once every three years in order to discuss the principles and objectives of our association. Due to the current Covid-19 pandemic, we will unfortunately not be able to physically meet at the General Assembly this time, but instead we will host the General Assembly online. This option is permitted by §7 of Democracy Internationals' Statutes. Please find the exact provisions of our statutes here [https://www.democracy-international.org/sites/default/files/PDF/di\\_statutes\\_01-06-15\\_2.pdf](https://www.democracy-international.org/sites/default/files/PDF/di_statutes_01-06-15_2.pdf).

The topics at this year's General Assembly will be in particular the adoption of the budget for the year 2021 and an update on DI's activities and projects over the past year. And of course, we are looking forward to giving you an overview of the exciting activities of Democracy International planned for the upcoming year. Furthermore, after 10 years, we would like to update our statutes and introduce some amendments.

If you would like to participate in the General Assembly, please [register here](#).

Kindly, find the agenda below. If you wish to set additional topics on the agenda or you would like to submit a proposal, we are looking forward to your input. Please inform us in advance.

The board proposes the following agenda for the General Assembly:

<h2>General Assembly</h2> <p><b>Saturday, 3 July 2021, 3:00 – 5:30 pm CEST : Draft Agenda</b></p>
<p><b>A 3:00 Formalities</b></p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"><li>• Declaration of quorum, minutes, adoption of the agenda</li></ul>
<p><b>B 3:15 Activity report 2020</b></p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"><li>• Report about activities of Democracy International in 2020</li></ul>
<p><b>C 3:30 Report of Auditor</b></p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"><li>• <a href="#">Audit report for the year 2019</a> and discussion (Annex Page 7)</li></ul>



## DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL

<ul style="list-style-type: none"><li>• Vote on exoneration of the board</li><li>• Election of a new auditor</li></ul>
<b>D 3:50 Agenda 2021</b> <ul style="list-style-type: none"><li>• Presentation of Democracy International's planned activities for 2021</li></ul>
<b>E 4:10 Budget 2021</b> <ul style="list-style-type: none"><li>• <a href="#">Report on Budget 2020 and presentation of Democracy International's budget plan for 2021</a> (Annex Page 13)</li><li>• Discussion and vote</li></ul>
<b>F 4:30 <u>Amendments / Motions</u></b> <ul style="list-style-type: none"><li>• Motion 1 by Andreas Müller (Managing Director Democracy International): <b>Amendment of the statutes - removal of §4 Supporters/sponsors group, §12 Chapters, §15 Transitional provisions</b> (Annex Page 17)</li><li>• Motion 2 by Alexander Trennheuser (Coordinator of the Council): <b>Amendment of the statutes - removal of the Initiative Council</b> (Annex Page 20)</li><li>• Motion 3 by Daniel Schily (Board member of Democracy International) &amp; Andreas Müller (Managing Director Democracy International): <b>Amendment of the statutes – Establishment of an Executive Board with three to five members</b> (Annex Page 27)</li></ul>
<b>G 5:15 Any other business</b>
<b>5:30 END</b>

We hope to see you participate at our next General Assembly on 3 July 2021. We look forward to meeting you.

With kindest regards,  
The Board of Democracy International

Mehdi Ben Mimoun  
Daniela Bozhinova  
Bruno Kaufmann  
Jung Ok Lee  
Joe Mathews  
Erwin Mayer  
Suresh Nautiyal



**DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL**

Arjen Nijeboer  
Daniel Schily  
Dane Waters



## 2. FORMELLE EINLADUNG ZUR MITGLIEDERVERSAMMLUNG - DEUTSCHE VERSION

Liebe Mitglieder von Democracy International,

wir laden Sie hiermit zur nächsten Mitgliederversammlung von Democracy International e.V. ein, die als Online-Konferenz via Zoom am Samstag, den 3. Juli, 15:00 - 17:30 Uhr MESZ stattfinden wird.

Die Generalversammlung findet im Rahmen des 10-jährigen Bestehens von Democracy International statt.

Gemäß unserer Satzung halten wir mindestens alle drei Jahre eine Mitgliederversammlung ab, um die Prinzipien und Ziele unserer Organisation zu besprechen. Aufgrund der aktuellen Covid-19-Pandemie können wir uns dieses Mal leider nicht physisch zur Mitgliederversammlung treffen, sondern werden diese online durchführen. Diese Möglichkeit ist in §7 der Satzung von Democracy Internationals geregelt. Die genauen Regelungen dazu stehen in unserer Satzung:[https://www.democracy-international.org/sites/default/files/PDF/di\\_statutes\\_01-06-15\\_2.pdf](https://www.democracy-international.org/sites/default/files/PDF/di_statutes_01-06-15_2.pdf).

Die Themen der diesjährigen Mitgliederversammlung werden insbesondere die Verabschiedung des Finanzplans für das Jahr 2021 und ein Update über die Aktivitäten und Projekte von DI im vergangenen Jahr sein. Und natürlich freuen wir uns darauf, Ihnen einen Überblick über die spannenden Aktivitäten von Democracy International zu geben, die für das kommende Jahr geplant sind. Außerdem möchten wir nach 10 Jahren unsere Satzung aktualisieren und einige Änderungen einbringen.

Wenn Sie an der Mitgliederversammlung teilnehmen möchten, melden Sie sich bitte [hier](#) an.

Die Tagesordnung finden Sie unten. Wenn Sie weitere Themen auf die Tagesordnung setzen wollen oder einen Antrag stellen möchten, freuen wir uns auf Ihren Input. Bitte informieren Sie uns im Vorfeld.

Der Vorstand schlägt die folgende Tagesordnung für die Mitgliederversammlung vor:

<b>Mitgliederversammlung</b>
<b>Samstag, 3. Juli 2021, 15:00 – 17:30 MESZ : Entwurf der Tagesordnung</b>
<b>A 15:00 Formalitäten</b>
<ul style="list-style-type: none"><li>• Feststellung der Beschlussfähigkeit, Protokoll, Annahme der Tagesordnung</li></ul>
<b>B 15:15 Tätigkeitsbericht 2020</b>
<ul style="list-style-type: none"><li>• Bericht über die Aktivitäten von Democracy International im Jahr 2020</li></ul>



## DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL

<p><b>C 15:30 Bericht des Rechnungsprüfers</b></p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"><li>• <a href="#">Rechnungsprüfungsbericht für das Jahr 2019</a> und Aussprache. (Anhang Seite 7)</li><li>• Abstimmung über Entlastung des Vorstandes</li><li>• Wahl einer/s neuen Rechnungsprüfers/in</li></ul>
<p><b>D 15:50 Planung 2021</b></p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"><li>• Vorstellung der geplanten Aktivitäten von Democracy International im Jahr 2021</li></ul>
<p><b>E 16:10 Finanzplan 2021</b></p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"><li>• <a href="#">Finanzbericht zu 2020 und Vorstellung des Finanzplans von Democracy International im Jahr 2021</a> (Anhang Seite 13)</li><li>• Aussprache und Abstimmung</li></ul>
<p><b>F 16:30 Satzungsänderungen/Anträge</b></p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"><li>• Antrag 1 von Andreas Müller (Managing Director Democracy International): <b>Satzungsänderung - Streichung von §4 Förderkreis, §12 Chapters, §15 Übergangsbestimmungen</b> (Anhang Seite 17)</li><li>• Antrag 2 von Alexander Trennheuser (Coordinator of the Council): <b>Satzungsänderung - Streichung des Initiativenrats</b> (Anhang Seite 20)</li><li>• Antrag 3 von Daniel Schily (Vorstandsmitglied von Democracy International) &amp; Andreas Müller (Managing Director Democracy International): <b>Satzungsänderung – Einsetzung eines drei bis fünfköpfigen Vorstands</b> (Anhang Seite 27)</li></ul>
<p><b>G 17:15 Sonstiges</b></p>
<p><b>17:30 Ende</b></p>

Wir hoffen, Sie bei unserer nächsten Mitgliederversammlung am 3. Juli 2021 als Teilnehmer\*in begrüßen zu dürfen. Wir freuen uns auf Sie!

Mit freundlichen Grüßen  
Der Vorstand von Democracy International

Mehdi Ben Mimoun  
Daniela Bozhinova  
Bruno Kaufmann



**DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL**

Jung Ok Lee  
Joe Mathews  
Erwin Mayer  
Suresh Nautiyal  
Arjen Nijeboer  
Daniel Schily  
Dane Waters





### **3. ANNEX / ANHANG**

#### **3.1 ANNEX 1 / ANHANG 1: REPORT ON THE AUDIT / BERICHT RECHUNGSPRÜFUNG 2019**

##### **Report on the Audit Of the Year 2019 Association Democracy International e.V.**

###### Preliminary remarks:

Democracy International is a non-profit association registered in the Federal Republic of Germany and thus subject to German law. However, the Law of Association does not provide concrete guidelines for the examination of documents for the elected auditors by the association because the internal audit is not an obligation by the law. The statutes of the association also provide no specific rules of how to carry out an audit. Nevertheless, it is necessary to obtain all business documents and all relevant information. An insight into the business documents was completely granted. The requested information was given in full. The collaboration with Managing Director, Mr. Andreas Müller, was impeccable, and I thank Mr. Müller at this point for his active support of the audit.

###### Audit Scope:

With this cash audit, the following tasks were accomplished:

###### **I. Revenue and expense statements**

- Review of cash transactions and cash receipts
- Audit of costs, in particular, whether revenues and expenditures were allocated correctly
- Review of whether membership subscriptions were duly received
- Examination of the association's accounts payable
- Examination of the association's fund
- Examination of the annual balance sheet with reference to the finance plan approved by the bodies

###### **II. Transparency**

- Did any extraordinary payments to board members or to the council take place?
- Did any payments to employees outside of the contractual agreements of the employment agreement take place?
- Have earmarked donations been applied for the respective purpose?
- Have project expenses of the association been approved by the responsible association committee?

###### **A Revenue and expense statements**

###### **I. Review of cash transactions and cash receipts**

Democracy International kept an additional cash box during the audited period. The receipts are available in their entirety.



## II. Revenue and Expenditure

Five folders with bank documents of four different accounts at the German BFS and GLS bank, as well as the PayPal account connection were examined.

All classified receipts followed the chronological sequence of the bank documents in uninterrupted order. The corresponding receipts and expenses were directly attached to the respective account statements. It was therefore possible to track the corresponding payment purpose based on the attached receipts. The bank statement form of voucher thus also allowed the arithmetic revenue and expenditure account to be reconciled. Only in three cases, the respective receipts were not provided. However, the managing director clarified. Furthermore, for reasons of practicality, in the future, all payment receipts in foreign currencies should be marked with the appropriate exchange rate to guarantee transparency for the auditor as it has already been done in some cases.

Overall, the supporting documents were kept very conscientiously and clearly. A few documents were not self-explanatory but were always comprehensible when explained by the management. With such documents it would be advisable to attach a brief explanatory note on the part of the management..

## III. Membership subscriptions

Number of members in 2019 who paid membership fees: 106 members – revenue € 6,000.00

Reminders for membership fees have been sent. Anyone who did not pay the membership fee has lost their membership status.

## IV. Liabilities

In 2019, the association had no loans. There were no liabilities for loan repayments.

## V. Assets of the Association

In the beginning of 2019, the association had a bank balance of a total of € 84,417.26.

In the end of 2019, the bank balance amounted to € 42,977.67.

## VI. Budget 2019

### Costs 2019

Costs	Adapted/planed	Total 2019	Balance
<b>Total Costs</b>	<b>adapted</b>	<b>-641,974.14 €</b>	<b>-239,632.14 €</b>
	<b>planed</b>	<b>-402,342.00 €</b>	
<b>Costs Office</b>	adapted	-78,847.49 €	<b>-57,727.49 €</b>
	planed	-21,120.00 €	
<b>Costs – Staff</b>	adapted	-229,066.70 €	<b>-18,726.70 €</b>
	planed	-210,340.00 €	
<b>Costs – Banking</b>	adapted	-2,729.56 €	<b>-1,559.56 €</b>
	planed	-1,170.00 €	



## DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL

<b>Costs – Advertising/Fundraising</b>	adapted	-6,359.80 €	3,990.20 €
	planed	-10,350.00 €	
<b>Costs - Events/Activities</b>	adapted	-104,568.10 €	6,211.90 €
	planed	-110,780.00 €	
<b>Fees for partner organisations</b>	adapted	-63,659.48 €	-17,317.48 €
	planed	-46,342.00 €	
<b>Costs – other</b>	adapted	-156,743.01 €	-154,503.01 €
	planed	-2,240.00 €	

### Income 2019

<b>Income</b>	<b>Adapted/planed</b>	<b>Total 2019</b>	<b>Balance</b>
<b>Total Income</b>	<b>adapted</b>	<b>684,951.81 €</b>	<b>294,911.81 €</b>
	<b>planed</b>	<b>390,040.00 €</b>	
<b>Membership fees</b>	adapted	6,160.00 €	960.00 €
	planed	5,200.00 €	
<b>Donations</b>	adapted	9,953.58 €	-7,406.42 €
	planed	17,360.00 €	
<b>Donations - big</b>	adapted	439,700.00 €	160,700.00 €
	planed	279,000.00 €	
<b>Fees - partner</b>	adapted	11,520.34 €	5,520.34 €
	planed	6,000.00 €	
<b>Grants/Foundation</b>	adapted	121,863.88 €	109,863.88 €
	planed	12,000.00 €	
<b>Other income</b>	adapted	11,186.75 €	10,706.75 €
	planed	480.00 €	
<b>Participation fee</b>	adapted	150.00 €	150.00 €
	planed	0.00 €	
<b>Sale of goods</b>	adapted	0.00 €	0.00 €
	planed	0.00 €	
	adapted	0.00 €	0.00 €



## DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL

<b>Interest income</b>	planned	0.00 €	
<b>Loans</b>	adapted	0.00 €	0.00 €
	planned	0.00 €	
<b>Income - Loan</b>	adapted	0.00 €	0.00 €
	planned	0.00 €	
<b>Borrowing (loans)</b>	adapted	0.00 €	0.00 €
	planned	0.00 €	
<b>Surplus previous year</b>	adapted	84,417.26 €	14,417.26 €
	planned	70,000.00 €	

<b>Annual result 2019</b>	adapted	<b>42,977.67 €</b>	<b>30,675.67 €</b>
	planned	<b>-12,302.00 €</b>	

### Travel expenses 2019

<b>Travel expenses</b>	adapted	<b>-58,436.96 €</b>	<b>-1,336.96 €</b>
	planned	<b>-57,100.00 €</b>	

### Proportion travel expenses to total costs 2019

<b>Travel expenses/Costs - Total</b>	adapted	9.10%	
	planned	14.19 %	

### Earmarked donations and special payments

#### 1. Project funding for Learning Democracy

Total costs of the project in 2019: **-15,203.00 €**

February 2019	25,000.00 €
---------------	-------------

Total funding: 25,000.00 Euro

#### 2. Project funding for Direct Democracy Navigator

Total costs of the project in 2019: **-42,537.91 €**

June 2019	12,000.00 €
-----------	-------------

Total funding: 12,000.00 Euro (contribution of Swiss Democracy Foundation)

#### 3. Project funding for Democracy House Cologne



## DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL

Total costs of the project in 2018: **-15,829.02 €**

July 2019	8,000.00 €
August 2019	1,400.00 €
November 2019	5,000.00 €

Total funding: 14,904.00 Euro

#### 4. Project funding for European Public Sphere

Total costs of the project in 2019: **-21,605.22 €**

Contributions from partner organisations	
May 2019	1,000.00 €
June 2019	1,000.00 €
July 2019	1,537.97 €
November 2019	1,083.00 €
December 2019	650.00 €

Grants	
June 2019	3,000.00 € (GLS Treuhand)

Total funding: 8,270.97 Euro

#### 5. Project funding for EU – Activities

Total costs of the project in 2019: **-80,117.68 €**

February 2019	85,000.00 € (GLS Treuhand)
March 2019	21,863.88 € (Mehr Demokratie)

Total funding: 106,863.88 Euro

#### 6. Funding for Global Forum 2018

Total costs of the project in 2019: **-22,999.67 €**

February 2019	23,000.00€ (ACEA)
---------------	-------------------

Total funding: 23,000.00€

#### 7. Funding for renovation of new office

Total costs of the project in 2019: **- 134,631.63 €**

January 2019	15,000.00 €
April 2019	100,000.00 €

Total funding: 115,000.00 Euro



## **B Transparency**

### **I. Payments made to members of the board or of the council**

Members of the board and the council received a compensation of travel expenses. There was a resolution for this effect.

### **II. Payments to employees**

All permanent employees working in 2019 were subject to social insurance contributions. Taxes and duties were taken in accordance with the statutory provisions. In addition to the agreed salary, employees were reimbursed for travel expenses.

The gross incomes of full-time employees in 2019 were in the lower range compared to the average salaries paid for employees in non-profit organizations in Germany.

Other assistants employed in 2019 were correctly registered as “minijobbers”. The hourly wage was above the statutory minimum wage.

In addition, honoraria were paid to external employees and in accordance with the honorarium agreement. These fees are allocated to “Costs – Events/Activities”.

### **III. Approval of project expenditures by the responsible association committees**

The implementation of individual actions and projects was decided by the responsible association committees. However, no exact budget was approved for the respective projects.

## **Summary**

Overall, the accounts for the audit points presented are in an impeccable condition and are carried out very conscientiously. The possibilities of further improvement mentioned in the report do not under any circumstances call the regularity of the management into question. From the point of view of auditing, there is nothing to prevent discharge of the executive board.

Cologne, September 2020

Felix Hoffmann



**3.2 ANNEX 2 / ANHANG 2: REPORT BUDGET 2020 & BUDGET PLAN 2021 / FINANZBERICHT 2020 & FINANZPLAN 2021**

a. Budget report 2020

Category	Detailed results	Balance	Remarks
Costs total	Adapted: - 387,854.00 Euro Planned: - 449,696.00 Euro	- 61,842.00 Euro	Less costs due to the restrictions of the Covid-19 pandemic
Costs Office	Adapted: - 59,269.24 Euro Planned: - 64,410.00 Euro	-5,140.76 Euro	
Costs Staff	Adapted: - 258,818.47 Euro Planned: - 247,910.00 Euro	+ 10,908.47 Euro	Costs salaries for staff project "Democracy House Cologne"
Costs Banking	Adapted: - 752.18 Euro Planned: -1,170.00 Euro	- 417.82 Euro	
Costs Advertising/Fundraising	Adapted: - 248.08 Euro Planned: - 10,350.00 Euro	- 10,101.92 Euro	Due to Covid-19: less costs for info materials etc.
Costs Events/ Activities	Adapted: - 13,636.57 Euro Planned: - 92.620,00 Euro	- 78,983.43 Euro	Due to Covid-19: less travel & campaigning costs
Costs Fees partner organisations	Adapted: - 40,220.72 Euro Planned: - 25,996.00 Euro	+ 14,224.72 Euro	Financial support of 14.000 Euro for project "Democracy House Cologne"
Costs Other	Adapted: - 14,872.74 Euro Planned: - 2,240.00 Euro	+ 12,632.74 Euro	Last invoice office renovations & invoice tax declaration 2016-2018



## DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL

Category	Detailed results	Balance	Remarks
Income total	Adapted: 507,089.01 Euro Planned: 437,990.00 Euro	+ 69,099.01 Euro	Fundraising successes, especially with foundations and the EU-programme Europe for Citizens
Membership fees	Adapted: 5,715.00 Euro Planned: 5,750.00 Euro	- 35.00 Euro	
Donations	Adapted: 5,686.98 Euro Planned: 17,360.00 Euro	- 11,673.02 Euro	Less small donations campaigns
Donations - big	Adapted: 133,500.00 Euro Planned: 290,000.00 Euro	- 156,500.00 Euro	Moved to Grants/Foundation
Fees partner	Adapted: 16,110.00 Euro Planned: 15,000.00 Euro	+ 1,110.00 Euro	
Grants/ Foundations	Adapted: 299,374.06 Euro Planned: 57,000.00 Euro	+242,374.06 Euro	More fundraising successes, 1st instalment of EU "Remember" project (Europe for Citizens)
Other income	Adapted: 3725.30 Euro Planned: 2,880.00 Euro	+ 845.30 Euro	
Participation fees	Adapted: 0.00 Euro Planned: 0.00 Euro	0.00 Euro	
Sale of Goods	Adapted: 0.00 Euro Planned: 0.00 Euro	0.00 Euro	
Interest income	Adapted: 0.00 Euro Planned: 0.00 Euro	0.00 Euro	
Loans	Adapted: 0.00 Euro Planned: 0.00 Euro	0.00 Euro	
Income – Loan	Adapted: 0.00 Euro Planned: 0.00 Euro	0.00 Euro	
Borrowing (loans)	Adapted: 0.00 Euro Planned: 0.00 Euro	0.00 Euro	





Surplus previous year	Adapted: 42,977.67 Euro Planned: 50,000.00 Euro	- 7,022.33 Euro	
-----------------------	--	-----------------	--

Result 2020		Balance
Democracy International	Adapted: 119,235.01 Euro Planned: -11,706.00 Euro	+ 130.941,01 Euro

### b. Planned Budget 2021

Category	
<b>Costs total</b>	<b>Planned: - 462,195.00 Euro</b>
Costs Office	Planned: - 66,215.00 Euro
Costs Staff	Planned: - 291,850.00 Euro
Costs Banking	Planned: -1,170.00 Euro
Costs Advertising/Fundraising	Planned: - 6,880.00 Euro
Costs Events/ Activities	Planned: - 59,490.00 Euro
Costs Fees partner organisations	Planned: - 18,350.00 Euro
Costs Other	Planned: - 18,240.00 Euro



## DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL

Category	
<b>Income total</b>	<b>Planned: 437,990.00 Euro</b>
Membership fees	Planned: 5,200.00 Euro
Donations	Planned: 19,760.00 Euro
Donations - big	Planned: 250,000.00 Euro
Fees partner	Planned: 12,720.00 Euro
Grants/ Foundations	Planned: 65,000.00 Euro
Other income	Planned: 2,430.00 Euro
Participation fees	Planned: 0.00 Euro
Sale of Goods	Planned: 0.00 Euro
Interest income	Planned: 0.00 Euro
Loans	Planned: 0.00 Euro
Income – Loan	Planned: 0.00 Euro
Borrowing (loans)	Planned: 0.00 Euro
Surplus previous year	Planned: 100,000.00 Euro

Result 2021	
Democracy International	Planned: - 7,085.00 Euro



**3.3 ANNEX 3 / ANHANG 3: MOTIONS GENERAL ASSEMBLY DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL / ANTRÄGE MITGLIEDERVERSAMMLUNG DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL**

<b>Motion 1: Amendment of the statutes - Removal of §4 Supporters/sponsors group, §12 Chapters, §15 Transitional provisions</b>	<b>Antrag 1: Satzungsänderung - Streichung von §4 Förderkreis, §12 Chapters, §15 Übergangsbestimmungen</b>
Author: Andreas Müller, Managing Director of Democracy International	Antragsteller: Andreas Müller, Managing Director von Democracy International
<p>Explanation:            After 10 years parts of the statutes that were not used or are outdated should be adapted or, if necessary, deleted.</p> <p>For this reason, the paragraphs §4 Förderkreis, §12 Chapters as well as §15 Übergangsbestimmungen should be deleted and removed from the statutes.</p>	<p>Begründung:            Nach 10 Jahren sollen Teile der Satzung, die nicht zur Anwendung kamen oder überholt sind, angepasst oder ggf. gestrichen werden.</p> <p>Die Paragraphen §4 Förderkreis, §12 Chapters sowie §15 Übergangsbestimmungen sollen aus diesem Grund gestrichen und aus der Satzung entfernt werden.</p>
The following sections of the Statutes shall be modified:	Folgende Teile der Satzung sollen geändert werden:
<del>§4 Supporters/sponsors group</del>	<del>§4 Förderkreis</del>



## DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL

1. <del>The Supporters/sponsors Group is a group formed of individuals and legal entities who/which have an interest in supporting Democracy International e.V.</del>	1. <del>Der Förderkreis ist ein Zusammenschluss von natürlichen und juristischen Personen, denen die Unterstützung von Democracy International e.V. ein Anliegen ist.</del>
2. <del>Membership of the Supporters Group is by application only. The Executive Board decides by simple majority on applications.</del>	2. <del>Die Aufnahme in den Förderkreis ist zu beantragen. Der Vorstand entscheidet mehrheitlich über den Aufnahmeantrag.</del>
3. <del>The members of the Supporters Group shall be kept informed of the activities and plans of Democracy International.</del>	3. <del>Die Mitglieder des Förderkreises werden über die Aktivitäten und Vorhaben von Democracy International informiert.</del>
<b>§12 Chapters</b>	<b>§12 Chapters</b>
<del>Members of Democracy International in a country can form themselves into a Chapter bearing the title "Democracy International" followed by the name of the country. Details have to be decided by the general Assembly.</del>	<del>Mitglieder von Democracy International in einem Land können sich zu einem Chapter zusammenschließen und den Namen "Democracy International" mit dem Zusatz des jeweiligen Landesnamen führen. Das Nähere bestimmt die Mitgliederversammlung.</del>
<b>§15 Transitional provisions</b>	<b>§15 Übergangsbestimmungen</b>
1. <del>As a departure from the provisions of §10, at the first General Assembly following the Founding Assembly the Articles of Association</del>	1. <del>Abweichend von §10 kann auf der auf die Gründungsversammlung folgenden Mitgliederversammlung die Satzung mit einfacher Mehrheit und ohne Zustimmung des Rats geändert werden.</del>



<p>may be amended by simple majority and without the approval of the Council.</p>	
<p><del>2. Until such time as the Council has been constituted, all decisions taken are valid without the approval of the Council.</del></p>	<p><del>2. Solange noch kein Rat gebildet ist, gelten alle gefassten Entschlüsse auch ohne Zustimmung des Rates.</del></p>
<p><del>3. As soon as more than three groups or associations join the Association, the Executive Board shall convene the first sitting of the Council.</del></p>	<p><del>3. Sobald mehr als drei Vereinigungen Mitglied des Vereins sind, beruft der Vorstand die erste Ratssitzung ein.</del></p>



<b>Motion 2: Amendment of the statutes - Removal of the Initiative Council</b>	<b>Antrag 2: Satzungsänderung - Streichung des Initiativenrats</b>
Author: Alexander Trennheuser, Council Coordinator of Democracy International	Antragsteller: Alexander Trennheuser, Koordinator Initiativenrat von Democracy International
<p>Explanation:</p> <p>There is a lot of theory involved in founding an association and many things do not later develop as expected. The Council, as the advisory council of democracy organisations that contribute to DI's campaigns with know-how and financial support, is one of these. In the statutes, the council has a prominent position; for example, it has to approve the budget. In practice, the organisations represented in the Council can hardly live up to this task. Although an annual meeting took place before Corona, the focus was more on informal exchange between the organisations, some of which were very differently positioned. The adoption of the budget was a rather annoying duty. We therefore propose: "Cancel the Council!". The Council does not need to be anchored in the statutes of DI; networking between democracy organisations takes place through the practical work of DI even without the formal requirement to do so in the statutes.</p>	<p>Begründung:</p> <p>Bei Gründung eines Vereins ist viel Theorie im Spiel. Und manches entwickelt sich später nicht so wie gedacht. Der Council als Rat der Demokratie-Organisationen, die mit Know How und finanzieller Unterstützung zu den Kampagnen von DI beitragen, ist so ein Fall. In der Satzung hat der Rat eine hervorgehobene Stellung; so muss er bspw. dem Budget zustimmen. In der Praxis können die Organisationen, die im Rat vertreten sind, diesen Anspruch kaum einlösen. Zwar fand vor Corona ein jährliches Treffen statt; hier stand aber eher der informelle Austausch zwischen den teils sehr unterschiedlich aufgestellten Organisationen im Vordergrund. Die Verabschiedung des Budgets war dabei eine eher lästige Pflicht. Wir schlagen daher vor: "Cancel the Council!". Der Rat braucht keine Verankerung in der Satzung von DI; eine Vernetzung von Demokratie-Organisationen findet durch die praktische Arbeit von DI auch ohne Verankerung in der Satzung ohnehin statt.</p>



The following sections of the Statutes and of the membership regulations shall be modified:	Folgende Teile der Satzung sowie der Beitragsordnung sollen geändert werden:
<b>§3 Membership</b>	<b>§3 Mitgliedschaft</b>
2. Application for membership of the Association must be made in writing. In the case of individual applications, the Executive Board shall decide by simple majority whether or not to accept an application. Its decision shall be conveyed in writing to the applicant. Acceptance of associations and groups shall require the joint approval of the Executive Board and the Council, in each case by simple majority.	2. Der Beitritt zum Verein ist schriftlich zu erklären. Über den Aufnahmeantrag von natürlichen Mitgliedern entscheidet der Vorstand mit einfacher Stimmenmehrheit und unterrichtet den Beitrittswilligen durch schriftliche Mitteilung. Die Aufnahme von Vereinigungen als Mitglieder bedarf der <del>gemeinsamen</del> Zustimmung <del>von Vorstand und Rat</del> <del>jeweils</del> <del>des Vorstands</del> mit einfacher Mehrheit.
<b>§6 Organs of the Association</b>	<b>§6 Organe des Vereins</b>
1. The General Assembly	1. Die Mitgliederversammlung



<ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>2. The Executive Board</li> <li>3. <del>The Initiative Council (referred to below simply as "the Council")</del></li> <li>4. The Board of Trustees</li> </ol>	<ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>2. Der Vorstand</li> <li>3. <del>Initiativenrat (im folgenden "Rat")</del></li> <li>4. Das Kuratorium</li> </ol>
<p><b>§8 The General Assembly</b></p>	<p><b>§8 Die Mitgliederversammlung</b></p>
<p>3. The General Assembly is empowered to decide on all essential affairs of the Association, in particular on the election of the Executive <del>Committee</del> Board, the choice of an auditor, the activity report and <del>accounts</del> audit report, the discharge of the Executive Committee and the auditor, and <del>together with the Council</del> on the budget, amendments to the Statutes of the Association, and the <del>winding-up</del> dissolution of the Association.</p>	<p>3. Die Mitgliederversammlung beschließt über alle wesentlichen Vereinsangelegenheiten,  insbesondere über die Wahl des Vorstandes, die Wahl eines Rechnungsprüfers, den Tätigkeits- und Rechnungsbericht, die Entlastung des Vorstandes und Rechnungsprüfers und <del>zusammen mit dem Rat</del> über den Vereinshaushalt, Satzungsänderungen und über die Auflösung des Vereins.</p>
<p><del>5. In the General Assembly members of the Council have one vote each. Where a representative of a Council Member is him/herself a member of Democracy International, she/he must decide which right to vote she/he exercises, the personal or that of the Council Member</del></p>	<p><del>5. Mitglieder des Rates haben in der Mitgliederversammlung jeweils eine Stimme.</del></p>





## DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL

	<p>Ist ein/e Repräsentant/in eines Ratsmitglieds ebenfalls Mitglied von Democracy International, so muss sie/er sich entscheiden welches Stimmrecht er/sie ausübt, das persönliche oder das des Ratsmitgliedes#</p>
<b>§9 The Executive Board</b>	<b>§9 Der Vorstand</b>
<p>4. The Executive Board may appoint one or more business managers to take care of day-to-day business matters. Managers thus appointed are accountable to the Executive Board, <del>the Council</del> and to the General Assembly.</p>	<p>4. Zur Führung der laufenden Geschäfte kann der Vorstand einen oder mehrere Geschäftsführer berufen. Diese sind dem Vorstand, <del>dem Rat</del> und der Mitgliederversammlung rechenschaftspflichtig.</p>
<p>5. The Executive Board may appoint members of Democracy International to form an advisory board. The Members of the advisory board give support to the Executive Board <del>and the Council</del>.</p>	<p>5. Der Vorstand kann Mitglieder von Democracy International in einen beratenden Beirat berufen. Die Mitglieder des Beirates unterstützen den Vorstand <del>und Rat</del>.</p>
<b>§10 The Council</b>	<b>§10 Der Rat</b>



## DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL

<p><del>1. The Council advises and supports the Executive Board in its work. It must give its approval to any change in the Articles of Association, to the budget, to the recognition of Chapters (See §12 below), and to the winding up of the Association. The Council may submit motions to the General Assembly.</del></p>	<p><del>1. Der Rat berät und unterstützt den Vorstand in seiner Arbeit. Er muss jeder Satzungsänderung, dem Haushalt, der Anerkennung von Chapters (Siehe §12 unten) und der Auflösung des Vereins zustimmen. Der Rat kann Anträge an die Mitgliederversammlung stellen.</del></p>
<p><del>2. Democracy initiatives which have more than seven members may be members of the Council. The Executive Board and the Council shall decide on their admission to the Council. Members of the Council need also to be members of Democracy International.</del></p>	<p><del>2. Mitglieder des Rates können Demokratieinitiativen sein, die mehr als sieben Mitglieder haben. Vorstand und Rat entscheiden über die Aufnahme in den Rat. Mitglieder des Rats müssen auch Mitglieder bei Democracy International sein.</del></p>
<p><del>3. Chapters of Democracy International according to §12 shall be members of the Council.</del></p>	<p><del>3. Chapters von Democracy International nach § 12 sind Ratsmitglieder.</del></p>
<p><del>4. Each member of the Council has one vote, exercised by a representative.</del></p>	<p><del>4. Jedes Mitglied des Rates hat eine Stimme, die durch einen Repräsentanten ausgeübt wird.</del></p>
<p><del>5. The Council shall hold a sitting at least once a year. The entire Executive Board shall be invited to the sittings. The Council decides by simple majority.</del></p>	<p><del>5. Der Rat tagt mindestens einmal im Jahr. Zu den Sitzungen wird der gesamte Vorstand eingeladen. Der Rat entscheidet mit einfacher Mehrheit.</del></p>
<b>§14 Changes to the Articles of Association</b>	<b>§14 Satzungsänderungen</b>



## DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL

<p>1. Changes to the Articles of Association must be approved by a two-thirds majority of the votes of the General Assembly.</p>	<p>1. Satzungsänderungen bedürfen einer Mehrheit von Zweidritteln der Stimmen der Mitgliederversammlung.</p>
<p>2. The provisions of the Articles of Association which are to be amended, plus the relevant amendment proposals, are to be communicated to all members.</p>	<p>2. Die zu ändernden Vorschriften der Satzung sowie die jeweiligen Änderungsvorschläge sind den Mitgliedern mitzuteilen.</p>
<p><del>3. All amendments to the Articles of Association by the members require the approval of the Council.</del></p>	<p><del>3. Jede Änderung der Satzung durch die Mitglieder bedarf der Bestätigung des Rates.</del></p>
<p>Membership Fee</p> <p>English Version</p> <p><b>MEMBERSHIP FEES OF DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL</b></p> <p>1.The minimum annual membership fee per member (16 years and older) shall be:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>10 Euro for members from developing countries,</li> <li>20 Euro for members from emerging countries,</li> <li>40 Euro for members from all other countries.</li> </ul> <p>The allocation of the countries to <del>this</del> these three categories is done according to the world bank classification. „low-income-economies“ are</p>	<p><b>Deutsche Version</b></p> <p><b>BEITRAGSORDNUNG DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL</b></p> <p>Die Mindestjahresgebühr beträgt pro Vereinsmitglied ab dem 16. Lebensjahr</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>10,- Euro für Mitglieder aus Entwicklungsländern,</li> <li>20,- Euro für Mitglieder aus Schwellenländern,</li> <li>40,- Euro für Mitglieder aller weiteren Länder.</li> </ul> <p>Die Zuordnung der Länder zu diesen drei Kategorien erfolgt nach der Einordnung der Länder durch die Weltbank. „low-income-economies“ sind „Entwicklungsländer“</p>



## DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL

„developing countries“ ; „lower- & upper-middle-economies“ are „emerging countries“ „high-income-economies“ are „all other countries“.

The Executive Board and the Council are responsible for the allocation of countries to these three categories. There are no membership fees for members younger than 16.

2. The minimum annual fee shall be payable in full regardless of the point in the membership year at which membership is taken up.

3. The Executive Board and Council shall produce a list of recommendations for the average contribution expected from members relative to the economic status of their home country.

4. Membership fees fall are due on 1 January each year. For new members, the due date shall be the first day of the month which follows the month in which the membership application was submitted.

5. DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL will forward to each member an invoice for the membership fee due.

The annual fee for organisations depends on their size capability. The executive board and the Council is in charge of the negotiation of the definite fee.

(Brussels, 30.06.2011)

„lower- & upper-middle-economies“ sind „Schwellenländer“ „high-income-economies“ sind „alle weiteren Länder“.

Vorstand und Rat sind Der Vorstand ist für die Zuordnung der Länder in diese drei Kategorien verantwortlich. Für jüngere Vereinsmitglieder werden keine Gebühren erhoben.

Die Mindestjahresgebühr reduziert sich nicht durch Eintritt im laufenden Jahr.

Vorstand und Rat erstellen Der Vorstand erstellt eine Liste von Empfehlungen für den durchschnittlich zu erwartenden Beitrag von Mitgliedern, der sich an dem wirtschaftlichen Stand ihres Heimatlandes orientiert.

Stichtag zur Erhebung der Mitgliedsbeiträge ist der 1. Januar eines jeden Jahres. Bei Neuaufnahme gilt der Erste des folgenden Monats, in dem der Aufnahmeantrag eingereicht wird.

Der Mitgliedsbeitrag wird fällig nach Rechnungsstellung durch DEMOCRACY INTERNATIONAL.

Der Beitrag einer Organisation richtet sich nach ihrer Größe und Leistungsfähigkeit. Für die Aushandlung des genauen Beitrags hat der Vorstand haben der Vorstand und Rat das Mandat.

(Brüssel, 30. Juni 2011)



<b>Motion 3: Amendment of the statutes - Establishment of an Executive Board with three to five members</b>	<b>Antrag 3: Satzungsänderung – Einsetzung eines drei bis fünfköpfigen Vorstands</b>
<p>Author: Daniel Schily, Board member of Democracy International &amp; Andreas Müller, Managing Director of Democracy International</p>	<p>Antragsteller: Daniel Schily, Vorstandsmitglied von Democracy International &amp; Andreas Müller, Managing Director von Democracy International</p>
<p>Explanation:</p> <p>The experiences of the last years have shown that the cooperation between the executive board and the team as well as with the managing director s based on great trust and mutual respect.</p> <p>The work of the executive board has particularly focused on advising the team and sharing experiences and information.</p> <p>The legal and administrative work, on the other hand, was carried out by only a few board members. This was possible due to the great trust of the other board members. They thus "blindly" shared the legal responsibility without being aware of the far-reaching liability provisions under German law for association.</p> <p>This ambiguity shall be resolved by dividing the board into a legal, executive board (three to a maximum of five members) and an advisory board.</p>	<p>Begründung:</p> <p>Die Erfahrungen der letzten Jahre haben gezeigt, dass die Zusammenarbeit zwischen dem Vorstand und Team sowie auch mit der Geschäftsführung von großem Vertrauen und gegenseitigem Respekt geprägt ist.</p> <p>Die Arbeit des Vorstands konzentrierte sich insbesondere auf die Beratung des Teams und den Austausch von Erfahrungen und Informationen.</p> <p>Die juristische und administrative Arbeit hingegen wurde nur von wenigen Vorstandsmitgliedern getragen. Das war durch das große Vertrauen der anderen Vorstandsmitglieder möglich. Die juristische Verantwortung haben sie damit „blind“ mitgetragen, ohne sich der weitgehenden Haftungsbestimmungen nach deutschem Vereinsrecht bewusst zu sein.</p> <p>Diese Unklarheit soll durch die Aufteilung des Vorstands in einen juristischen, geschäftsführenden Vorstand (drei bis maximal fünf Mitglieder) und einen beratenden Beirat gelöst werden.</p>



The establishment of an advisory board to support the executive board is to be sought at the next general assembly.	Die Gründung eines beratenden Beirats zur Unterstützung des Vorstands soll zur nächsten Mitgliederversammlung angestrebt werden.
The following sections of the Statutes shall be modified:	Folgende Teile der Satzung sollen geändert werden:
<b>§9 The Executive Board</b>	<b>§9 Der Vorstand</b>
1. The Executive Board consists of at least <del>two</del> three, maximum five members and is elected by the General Assembly for a term of office of three years. Reelection is possible. When their term of office comes to an end, members of the Board remain in office until such time as their successors have been elected and have taken up their responsibilities.  If a member of the Board dies or resigns before the end of their period of office, a replacement may be coopted to fill the gap until the next General Assembly.	1. Der Vorstand besteht aus mindestens <del>zwei</del> drei, höchstens fünf Mitgliedern und wird für jeweils drei Jahre gewählt. Die Wiederwahl ist möglich. Die jeweils amtierenden Vorstandsmitglieder bleiben nach Ablauf ihrer Amtszeit solange im Amt, bis ihre Nachfolger ausgewählt sind und ihr Amt angetreten haben.  Stirbt ein Mitglied des Vorstandes oder tritt zurück, so kann der Platz mittels Kooptation bis zur nächsten Mitgliederversammlung besetzt werden, um die Lücke zu schließen.